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LUCECO PLC - 2024 FULL YEAR RESULTS
 

Results at the upper end of revised expectations, with strong demand in the final quarter of
2024. Early trading in Q1 gives confidence for further growth in 2025

 
Luceco plc, the suppl ier of wiring accessories , EV chargers , LED l ighting, and portable power products , today announces  i ts
audited results  for the year ended 31 December 2024 ("2024" or "the year").
 

2024 Summary Results
 

Year ended 31 December 2024
(£m unless otherwise stated) 2024 2023 Change (%)

 
Revenue 242.5 209.0 +16.0%

 
Adjusted Results1  
Adjusted operating profi t 29.0 24.0 +20.8%
Adjusted profi t before tax 24.9 21.2 +17.5%
Adjusted profi t after tax 19.2 17.3 +11.0%
Adjusted bas ic earnings  per share 12.5p 11.1p +12.6%

 
Statutory Results  
Operating profi t2 23.2 22.2 +4.5%
Profi t before tax 18.9 18.9 -
Profi t after tax 14.6 16.7 (12.6%)
Bas ic earnings  per share 9.5p 10.8p (12.0%)

 
Metrics  
Adjusted1 operating margin % 12.0% 11.5% +0.5ppts
Bank net debt 68.6 18.4 +272.6%
Bank net debt : EBITDA2 1.6x 0.6x +166.7%

Adjusted1 free cash flow 3.5 18.0 (80.6%)
Proposed ful l  year dividend per share 5.0p 4.8p +4.2%

 

1.   The definitions of the adjustments made and reconciliations to the reported figures can be found in note 1 of the consolidated financial statements
2.   Includes pro-forma adjustment for EBITDA of acquired businesses, as shown in note 1 of the consolidated financial statements
 
Performance highlights
 
·    2024 results at the upper end of market expectations:

o Revenue: up 16.0% to £242.5m and l ike-for-l ike revenue up 5.8% versus  the prior year
o Adjusted operating profi t: up 20.8% to £29.0m reflecting strong revenue growth and operating leverage
o Adjusted operating margin: up 50 bas is  points  to 12.0% which is  within our des ired range
o Adjusted EPS: up 12.6% to 12.5p from 11.1p
o Bank Net Debt : EBITDA ratio at 1.6x remains  within our target range of 1.0-2.0x fol lowing two acquis i tions  during

the year
o Ful l  year dividend increased by 4.2% to 5.0p, with a  final  proposed dividend of 3.3p

 
·    Another strong year of growth powered by our superior channel access and innovative product portfolio:

o Continuing to take market share with strong organic growth of 5.8% against a  wider market decl ine of 2.4%
o Acceleration in our EV product offering with sales  up 25.6% during the year
o Strong growth in our DIY Retai l  sector which is  showing early s igns  of recovery, whi lst infrastructure markets

remain more chal lenging
 

·    Impressive sales growth at the end of the year led to increased working capital that will reverse in 2025:
o Free cash flow adversely affected by strong sales  growth at the end of the year from the Group's  RMI divis ions.

December 2024 l ike-for-l ike sales  were £8.5m higher than December 2023
o Free cash generation of £93.7m s ince 2019 has  provided optional i ty for capital  a l location drivers

 
·    Integration of in-year acquisitions progressing well, with synergies already coming through from D-Line and supply chain

cost improvement projects underway for CMD:
o February 2024 acquis i tion of D-Line for £7.8m - cable solutions  provider with a  presence in the US/Europe which

provides  synergies  for our UK and international  terri tories
o September 2024 acquis i tion of CMD for £29.7m - des igner and manufacturer of a  comprehensive range of wiring

accessories  for commercial  premises  where i t holds  a  leading UK market pos ition
 

 



Outlook
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
·    2025 has  started wel l , with the strong momentum at the end of 2024 continuing in the fi rst quarter of the year
·    With UK interest rates  beginning to ease we are hopeful  that overal l  consumer and economic confidence wi l l  begin to

return, providing a  further ta i lwind for our markets  in 2025 and beyond
·    Strong new product pipel ine in high growth markets : EV Chargers  for Commercial  Premises , as  wel l  as  a  Home Energy

Management system ("HEMs") for integrating Res identia l  Batteries , EV Chargers , PV Solar Systems and Heating Controls
·    Luceco is  wel l  pos itioned to benefi t from continued operational  leverage through i ts  integrated, res i l ient and agi le

bus iness  model
 
Commenting on the results, Chief Executive Officer, John Hornby said:
 
"These results represent a strong year of growth in 2024, despite a lacklustre UK  macroeconomic environment, with a
par�cularly encouraging final quarter of the year. This trading momentum has con�nued in the opening quarter of 2025 and
we look forward to further growth this year - par�cularly with improving end-market dynamics. We have a strong and evolving
product por&olio to meet the expected demand in our high growth target markets of Electric Vehicle charging and Home Energy
Management system spaces. I am encouraged by our improving lead market indicators, and our underlying trading since the
year end which leaves us well positioned for further growth as we progress through 2025."
 
 

Results information
 
A mee>ng for analysts will be held at 9:30am GMT today, Wednesday 26 March 2025 at the offices of Deutsche N umis, 45
Gresham Street, L ondon EC2V  7BF. To register to aFend please email luceco@mhpgroup.com. To register to watch a live
webcast of the meeting, please follow this link:
 
https://brrmedia.news/LUCE_FY_24
 
 
Luceco plc Contact
John Hornby, Chief Executive Officer 07817 458804 (Via  MHP)
Wil l  Hoy, Chief Financial  Officer

MHP Contact
Tim Rowntree 07817 458804
Ol l ie Hoare
 
For the purposes  of M AR and ArIcle 2 of Commiss ion I mplemenIng RegulaIon (EU) 2016/1055 as  i t forms part of the
domesIc law of the UK  by vi rtue of the European Union (W ithdrawal) Act 2018, this  announcement is  being made on behalf
of Luceco plc by Wi l l  Hoy, Chief Financial  Officer.
 
Note to Editors
 
Luceco plc - Bringing Power To Life
 
Luceco plc (LSE:LUCE) is  a  suppl ier of wiring accessories , EV chargers , LED l ighting, and portable power products .
Luceco plc ("Luceco", "the Group" or "the Company").
 
For more information, please vis i t www.lucecoplc.com.
 
Forward-looking statements
 

This  announcement contains  forward looking statements  that are subject to risk factors  associated with, among other

things , the economic and bus iness  ci rcumstances  occurring from Ime to Ime in the countries , sectors  and markets  in
which the Group operates . I t i s  bel ieved that the expectaIons reflected in these statements  are reasonable, but they may be
affected by a  wide range of variables  which could cause actual  results  to di ffer materia l ly from those currently anticipated.

No assurances  can be given that the forward looking statements  in this  announcement wi l l  be real ised.

 

The forward looking statements  reflect the knowledge and informaIon avai lable at the date of preparaIon of this

announcement and the Company undertakes  no obl igaIon to update these forward looking statements . Nothing in this

announcement should be construed as  a  profi t forecast.
 
Use of alternative performance measures
 
The commentary in both the Chief ExecuIve O fficer's  and Chief F inancial  O fficer's  Reviews uses  a l ternaIve performance
measures, which are described as  "Adjusted". DefiniIons of these measures  can be found in note 1 of the consol idated
financial  s tatements . The measures  provide addiIonal  informaIon for users  on the underlying performance of the
business , enabl ing cons istent year-on-year comparisons.
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Chief Executive's review
 
 
Performance highlights
 
I  am pleased to report that in 2024, we generated strong momentum, achieving meaningful  growth despite a  lacklustre
macroeconomic environment in the UK . Revenue increased to £242.5m (2023: £209.0m) and strong profit convers ion
resulted in Adjusted O peraIng P rofit reaching £29.0m (2023: £24.0m). We outperformed a market which remains  soM,
taking market share and growing revenue by 5.8% on a l ike-for-l ike bas is . O ur performance was driven by our broad
product porNol io offered to the D I Y Retai l  sector, which is  showing early s igns  of recovery, and the impress ive growth of
our emerging range of excel lent EV chargers .
 
I  have also been pleased by the sustained improvement we are seeing in our Adjusted Operating Margin, made even
more impress ive when we cons ider the year-on-year increases  in copper and sea freight, l inked to the events  in the Red Sea.
O ur margin improvement has  been del ivered through internal  iniIaIves  such as  conInual ly improving factory efficiency,
lean practices  and competitive suppl ier sourcing.
 
O ur Bank Net Debt pos iIon moved to £68.6m, having increased fol lowing the successful  acquis iIons of D-Line and C M D,
nevertheless  our balance sheet remains  robust with Bank Net Debt leverage of 1.6x being comfortably within our target
range of 1.0-2.0x. O ur free cash generaIon was lower than we have seen in previous  years , as  at Imes we have needed to
carry addiIonal  inventory to counter potenIal  supply issues  l inked to the events  in the Red Sea. This  strategy proved
successful  in the fourth quarter, when our excel lent product avai labi l i ty meant we were able to capital ise on improving
market conditions  and grow organic revenue 20.8% over this  period.
 
Macroeconomic factors
 
In 2024, l ike many bus inesses , we navigated an environment shaped by more dynamic macroeconomic and geopol i tical
influences  than we have seen historical ly. For di fferent reasons, these sometimes rapid changes  have been a recurring
theme of recent years , so I  am pleased with the way we have embraced these shiMs  to cons istently outperform a volaIle
backdrop. Shipping costs , which stabi l i sed at relaIvely low levels  in 2023, began to rise in early 2024 fol lowing the events
in the Red Sea. Although shipping costs  have been a headwind in 2024, they appear to have peaked in July and have
returned to lower levels  s ince this  Ime. I mportantly, despite fluctuaIon, shipping costs  in 2024 remained s ignificantly
below the unprecedented heights  seen during the pandemic, both in scale and duraIon. The peak in July 2024 was
approximately 80% lower than O ctober 2021 and lasted one month compared to the elevated levels  we experienced
between May 2021 and August 2022.
 
We conInue to miIgate the ful l  effect of changes  in shipping costs  through our Free O n Board ("FO B") arrangements  with
our major Retai l  and Hybrid customers, who take del ivery in China and manage their own shipping processes. This
arrangement provides  us  with a  degree of insulaIon from broader market volaIl i ty. Materia l  costs  have also been a
moderate headwind as  we have moved through 2024, where ris ing demand and supply constraints  have increased
commodity prices . Although this  has  been parIcularly prevalent to the price of copper, we have hedging arrangements  in
place that offered short-term protecIon against this  exposure, helping to manage cost pressures  effecIvely. We are
comfortable with the rates  at which our 2025 hedges  have renewed.
 
I n spite of these macroeconomic factors , we are pleased to del iver a  50 bas is  points  increase in our Adjusted O peraIng
Margin. W ith our own sel l ing prices  being kept relaIvely stable to support consumer demand, this  improvement has  been
driven by excel lent work both in the UK  and China to drive down cost with both suppl iers  and in our own wel l -invested
factory, which is  bui l t to del iver further benefits  as  we scale as  a  bus iness . O veral l , I  am del ighted to see our Adjusted
Operating Margin return to through-the-cycle levels .
 
Underlying demand
                                                                                        
A key driver for our 5.8% l ike-for-l ike revenue growth was 27% l ike-for-l ike growth within our internaIonal  bus inesses.
W hen we first entered these markets  less  than a decade ago, we anIcipated i t would take Ime to establ ish a  strong
foothold. I t i s  therefore parIcularly rewarding to see the hard work of our internaIonal  sales  teams paying off this  year.
Al l  our internaIonal  bus inesses  del ivered year-on-year top-l ine revenue growth, with standout performances  in Dubai  and
I reland. Dubai  grew 28.0% and has  cemented i ts  pos iIon as  a  leading provider of LED LighIng and W iring Accessories  for
large-scale projects  in the region.
 
Meanwhi le, I reland achieved 55.0% growth, driven by robust demand in both the Retai l  and P rofess ional  W holesale
sectors . As  our internaIonal  bus inesses  conInue to scale, we anIcipate further improvements  in margins , which is  an
encouraging prospect for the Group overal l . O ur l ike-for-l ike revenue growth of 2.1% in the UK  is  put into context when we
compare ourselves  to the wider UK  construcIon market, with data from the ConstrucIon P roducts  AssociaIon ("C PA")
indicating that output of our addressable markets  reduced 2.4% in the same timeframe.
 
Approximately 60% of our UK  bus iness  is  focused on del ivering res idenIal  repair, maintenance and improvement ("R M I ")
soluIons to profess ional  instal lers  and general  consumers  performing D I Y. Us ing C PA data, we esImate that this  market's
output reduced 2.8% in 2024. Housing transactions, which drive improvement work both in the lead-up
to a housing sale as  wel l  as  fol lowing i t, conInue to remain subdued. Retai l  D I Y markets  a lso face chal lenges  with the
Barclays  Consumer Spending I ndex reporIng a 6.7% average reducIon in D I Y spending over the course of 2024. Despite
these chal lenges, our own UK  res idenIal  R M I  bus inesses  grew 7.1%, bolstered by a  strong close to the year. O ur retai l  D I Y
portfol io experienced a robust recovery in 2024, we continue to hold key strategic pos itions  within the Hybrid sales
channel  and with demand for sustainable solutions  growing, our EV charger bus iness  is  beginning to flourish.
 
The UK  non-res idenIal  arm of our bus iness , which accounts  for approximately 20% of UK  revenue, remained broadly flat
year-on-year. This  res i l ient performance fol lowed an excepIonal ly strong 2023 and outperformed a market where output
contracted by 0.5%. Although organisaIons conInue to be mindful  of the cost pressures  they are facing, we cons istently
outperform the market in this  field as  a  result of the efficiency savings  del ivered by our products  and the strong end-to-end
service we del iver. AMer a  series  of strong performances  in recent years , our Exterior LED LighIng bus inesses  had a more
chal lenging year with an 11.3% reducIon in revenue. Although the C PA esImates  that UK  infrastructure market output
reduced 0.9% in the year, this  does  not ful ly reflect the chal lenges  faced by large-scale LED l ighIng projects  in 2024, where
uncertainty driven by the UK election and the Autumn budget led organisations  to defer s igni ficant capital  investments .
 
As  we look ahead to 2025, the order books  for both DW  W indsor and K ingfisher LighIng are encouraging, pos iIoning us
wel l  for a  recovery as  market condiIons stabi l i se. W ithin the new housing market, elevated interest rates  conInue to make
market condiIons tough for housebui lders , with the C PA esImaIng a contracIon in output of 9.1% in 2024. However, we



market condiIons tough for housebui lders , with the C PA esImaIng a contracIon in output of 9.1% in 2024. However, we
esImate this  market makes  up less  than 5.0% of our sales  and despite market condiIons, we were sIl l  able to grow this
smal ler part of our bus iness  by 7.9%, a ided by increas ing sales  of EV chargers .
 
W hi lst i t i s  clear that our markets  in more recent years  have been chal lenging as  cost of l iving increases  have reduced
discretionary spending, there are s igns  that consumer confidence is  returning. Housing transactions  in quarter four were
18.2% higher than the prior year and the C PA forecasts  a  return to growth for the construcIon industry, supported by
fal l ing interest rates  and sustained real  wage growth. The fundamental  growth drivers  supporIng our industry and
business  remain. The drive towards  net zero, continuous regulatory change, new technology and an underlying need to
invest in UK  housing stock mean we can be confident that our markets  wi l l  del iver healthy and stable growth over the long
term.
 
Strategic highlights
 
Throughout 2024, we remained commiQed to our purpose of helping people harness  power sustainably in everyday l i fe.
Alongs ide del ivering strong financial  results , I  am pleased with the progress  we have made in advancing our strategic
priori ties  to Innovate, Grow and Sustain.
 
Innovate
 
Innovation is  the foundation of our purpose - to help people harness  power sustainably in everyday l i fe. Our abi l i ty to
see and do things  differently creates  value for stakeholders , fuels  bus iness  growth, sustains  our compeIIve advantage,
and contributes  to the trans iIon to net zero. We remain focused on developing new products  and enhancing our exisIng
range with increased funcIonal i ty ta i lored to customer needs. O ur global  team of over 100 product development
special is ts  drives  a  customer-centric, rapid and low-risk development process , which has  been instrumental  in the Group's
success . I n 2024, we made s ignificant strides  in expanding our product porNol io. To reflect the evoluIon of BG Sync EV's
offering beyond EV charging, we rebranded to Sync Energy - a  name that beQer encompasses  our broader range of
sustainable energy solutions.
 
A major mi lestone has  been the development of our own Home Energy Management system ("H EMs"), set to launch in early
2025. This  system enables  energy storage in modular baQeries  from both the grid and renewable sources, such as  solar
panels , a l lowing consumers  to use lower cost energy at opImal  Imes. W ith growing demand for EV charging, increas ing
renewable energy adopIon and pers istently high energy costs , home energy management is  expected to become a key
growth area both in the UK and international ly. This  next step for Sync Energy a l igns  perfectly with our miss ion to support a
more sustainable future. We have also conInued advancing our EV charging soluIons with the release of our first
commercial ly focused "P ro Charge" range in 2024. This  i s  complemented by our new EV Balancer, which connects  up to 16
chargers , dynamical ly managing power distribuIon to ensure safe and efficient charging expansion without exceeding a
bui lding's  power l imits . Another key mi lestone has  been the launch of our proprietary Sync Energy App, des igned
specifical ly for our EV chargers . This  app enhances  user control  through features  l ike "Tariff Sense" which opImises
charging Imes based on energy tariffs , and "Solar Mode" al lowing users  with solar panels  to maximise sel f-generated
energy. Looking ahead, access  to charging data wi l l  enable us  to col laborate with energy suppl iers  to recommend tai lored
tari ffs , further improving the customer experience.
 
Beyond EV soluIons, one of our most exciIng innovaIons in 2024 has  been the launch of the award-winning Ti tan Al l -in-
One LED Highbay Light, sold under the Luceco Lighting brand. Des igned for ul timate flexibi l i ty, i t features  adjustable
waQage, colour temperature and beam angle, ensuring opImal  l ighIng within industria l  appl icaIons such as  warehouses,
factories  and workshops.
 
We conInue to enhance our W iring Accessories  and Masterplug product l ines . O ur verIcal ly integrated manufacturing

model  a l lows us  to make rapid, low cost adjustments  to a l ign with evolving market trends. I n 2024, we capital ised on this

agi l i ty by launching Superfast US B-C sockets  under the BG brand and new US B-C wal l  chargers  under the Masterplug brand
- both of which cater to the increas ing demand for fast-charging solutions. Our commitment to innovation with
purpose is  a  core driver of our strategy, enabl ing us  to gain market share and create value through differenIated,

high margin products .

 
Grow
 
Despite chal lenging market condiIons, we conInue to grow the bus iness  both organical ly as  wel l  as  through targeted M&A
in l ine with our capital  a l locaIon pol icy. O ur range of W iring Accessories  had another very strong year. I n an industry
where project deadl ines  are Ight and Ime is  an incredibly valuable commodity, electricians  place a  high value on our
products  which are easy to instal l , rel iable and have excel lent avai labi l i ty. As  a  result, many electricians  have been us ing
our Wiring Accessories  products  throughout their enti re careers . We are incredibly proud of their loyalty, but we never take
it for granted.
 
O nce again, this  year we have invested in our industry, providing over 8,500 onl ine electrical  courses  via  Luceco Academy,
focus ing in parIcular on trainee electricians  who we hope wi l l  become the next generaIon of BG Electrical  users . The long-
standing deep relationships  we have with our customers  means we can work together to ensure the right products  are being
made avai lable to the end consumer. O ur sales  teams conInue to work closely with our R&D teams to extend exisIng
product ranges  to generate new bus iness  wins . I n 2024, we released our first EV chargers  sold under the Masterplug brand.
This  product extends our reach by uIl is ing our exisIng strong customer relaIonships  and leveraging our strong
Masterplug brand.
 
We are del ighted by the progress  our range of EV chargers  have made during the year and we are now seeing cons istent
top-l ine sales  growth. We started the year with revenue from EV charging products  typical ly generaIng £0.6m per month
and ended with the range generaIng in excess  of £1.0m per month. UlImately, our customers  choose our products  as  they
know they can sel l  them to the end consumer with confidence in their qual i ty and rel iabi l i ty; this  leaves  us  wel l  placed for
future organic growth.
 
We have complemented the Group's  long history of organic growth with acquis iIons funded by our cons istently strong
cash flow and in February 2024, we were del ighted to complete the acquis iIon of D-Line (Europe) Limited ("D-Line").



cash flow and in February 2024, we were del ighted to complete the acquis iIon of D-Line (Europe) Limited ("D-Line").
Headquartered in Tyne & Wear in the UK , D-Line des igns  and suppl ies  a  range of innovaIve cable management soluIons,
including decoraIve cable trunking and accessories , fire-rated cable supports , floor cable protectors  and cable
organisers . Employing approximately 60 people, D-Line serves  Retai l , W holesale and eCommerce customers  across  the UK ,
Europe and North America, with a  dedicated sales  and distribuIon faci l i ty in Kentucky, USA. D-Line's  product range is  a
natural  fi t a longs ide our existing categories . The bus iness  has  developed a strong brand both in the UK and international ly,
and we see s ignificant potenIal  in leveraging D-Line's  North American operaIons to support our expanding presence in the
region.
 
Fol lowing this , in September 2024, we were pleased to announce the acquis iIon of C M D Limited ("C M D"). Founded in 1984,
C M D des igns  and manufactures  a  comprehensive range of wiring accessories  for commercial  premises , where i t holds  a
leading pos iIon in the UK . P roducts  include under-floor and under-desk power distribuIon soluIons, on-desk and in-desk
sockets , and a range of ergonomic products  including the award-winning Miro monitor support arm. C M D has  an
experienced senior management team which wi l l  remain with the bus iness , conInuing to operate from i ts  headquarters  in
Rotherham.
 
W ith Luceco already wel l -establ ished as  a  leading suppl ier of W iring Accessories  to the UK  Res idenIal  market, C M D's
strong presence in the commercial  sector makes  i t a  highly complementary addiIon. O ur experIse in product development,
manufacturing and sourcing wi l l  enable us  to accelerate range innovaIon and improve margins  for C M D. AddiIonal ly,
C M D's  wel l -establ ished relaIonships  with specifiers  and contractors  present a  valuable opportunity to introduce Luceco's
profess ional  LED LighIng range to a  broader customer base. Both D-Line and C M D are strong bus inesses  with s ignificant
potenIal . We look forward to unlocking the opportuniIes  these acquis iIons present whi le conInuing to drive organic
growth that outperforms our markets .
 
Sustain
 
O ur Sustain strategy is  focused on taking acIon to contribute to society's  sustainabi l i ty goals  as  wel l  as  invesIng in our
people and our industry. Taking these acIons now wi l l  ensure we sustain our compeIIve advantage into the future. O ur
operaIons conInue to offer one of the lowest operaIonal  carbon footprints  in our industry and this  was  reaffirmed with a
"B" raIng from the Carbon Disclosure P roject in the first quarter of 2024. This  i s  our third year of reporIng to the plaNorm,

so we are del ighted our progress  integraIng cl imate related factors  into our bus iness  operaIons has  been reflected with a

strong grade.
 
We remain commiQed to our val idated targets  from the Science Based Targets  iniIaIve ("S BTi") of reducing operaIonal
emiss ions  by 46.2% and reducing value chain emiss ions  by 27.5% by 2031. To help us  achieve our targets  we wi l l  conInue
to source 100% renewable electrici ty and extend this  commitment to our newly acquired companies . I n September 2024, we
completed the instal laIon of our second solar PV array at our manufacturing faci l i ty in Jiaxing, China. W hen ful ly
operaIonal  we anIcipate that 13% of the s i te's  electrici ty consumpIon wi l l  be sel f-generated. Ensuring we use energy
efficiently across  heaIng, manufacturing processes  and transportaIon wi l l  play an important role in reducing our use of
foss i l  fuels .
 
Together with our S BTi  targets , in 2021 we also set ourselves  a  chal lenging objecIve of reaching £100m of revenue from
low carbon products  by 2025. Whi lst we are pleased with the progress  we have made, having generated £82.6m of low
carbon sales  in 2024, we are mindful  that consumer uptake of electric vehicles  has  been s lower when compared to market
forecasts  at the time we set our targets . We hope to make further progress  during 2025.
 

Sustainabi l i ty remains  at the heart of our product innovaIon. O ur new Titan Al l in O ne LED Highbay Light replaces  72 S KUs

with just four, reducing manufacturing, packaging and logisIcs  waste whi le offering greater flexibi l i ty to distributors  and
contractors . O ur Sync Energy porNol io, including EV chargers  and the upcoming Home Energy Management system,
supports  the trans iIon to cleaner energy. Home Energy Management systems enable homeowners  to store and manage
energy from both the grid and renewables , reducing emiss ions  and opImis ing energy use. By enhancing efficiency and
promoIng low carbon soluIons, our products  play a  key role in driving sustainable progress . Beyond environmental
sustainabi l i ty, we conInue to invest in the next generaIon of ski l led profess ionals . We are proud to sponsor the highly
accla imed S PAR KS Learner of the Year awards, which celebrate the most ta lented young electricians  in the UK  - vi ta l
contributors  to the future of our industry.
 
To sustain and accelerate future growth, we have also made further investments  in opImis ing our producIon and
procurement processes  in China. In 2024, we took key steps  to generate cost savings  whi le enhancing our manufacturing
capabi l iIes. I  am parIcularly pleased with the progress  we have made in expanding and automaIng the producIon of EV
chargers  and DW Windsor products , laying a  strong foundation for future scal ing and efficiency.
 
Outlook
 
Trading in early 2025 has  started wel l , a l though consumer confidence remains  relaIvely subdued, we are beginning to see
green shoots  of recovery within our markets . W hi lst the macroeconomic outlook for 2025 remains  difficult to judge, I  am
encouraged by our conInued underlying trading momentum which leaves  us  wel l  pos iIoned to make further progress  in
the year ahead.
 
JOHN HORNBY
Chief Executive Officer
 
25 March 2025
 
 

Chief Financial Officer's review
 
 
Summary of reported results
 



 
 

Summary results (£m) Reported
2024

Reported
2023

Revenue 242.5 209.0
Operating profi t 23.2 22.2
Profi t before tax 18.9 18.9
Taxation (4.3) (2.2)
Profi t for the period 14.6 16.7
 
O peraIng profit of £23.2m was £1.0m higher than 2023 as  a  result of strong revenue and gross  profit growth from both
organic and acquis i tion activi ty.
 
Alternative Performance Measures and adjusting items
 
Certain a l ternaIve performance measures  ("AP Ms") have been included within this  report. These AP Ms are used by the
Board to monitor and manage the performance of the Group, in order to ensure that decis ions  taken al ign with the Group's
long-term interests . A table summaris ing the reconci l iaIon of adjusted measures  to statutory measures  is  included in note
1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements . The fol lowing adjusting i tems were appl ied in the year:
 

·      Amortisation of acquired intangibles : £2.3m and acquis i tion-related costs  of £3.8m
·      Fair value movements  of hedging porNol io which have not completed in the period a £0.3m credit and interest rate

swaps of £0.2m costs
 
Adjusted Operating Profi t for the year, excluding the i tems above, was  therefore £29.0m (2023: £24.0m).
 
Income statement
 
Revenue
 
Revenue bridge: £m Change %
2023 209.0  
Acquis i tions/closures 23.9 +11.4%
Like-for-l ike increase1 12.2 +5.8%

Constant Currency2 245.1 +17.2%
Currency movements (2.6) -1.2%
TOTAL 242.5 +16.0%

1.      Like-for-l ike revenue increase excludes  the impact of currency movements  and acquis i tions, see note 10 of the
consol idated financial  s tatements

2.      2024 revenue trans lated at 2023 exchange rates
 
Revenue of £242.5m was £33.5m (16.0%) higher than 2023 as  bus iness  growth returned. Like-for-l ike revenue, excluding the
impact of currency, increased by £12.2m in the period, up 5.8%. The Group continues  to take market share, with Luceco's
overal l  addressable market experiencing a  2.4% decl ine, the Group's  performance in 2024 compares  highly favourably.
Within the UK, our infrastructure-related bus inesses  had a more di fficult period fa l l ing by over 11%, however excluding
these bus inesses  UK growth was over 5.7%. Our international  bus inesses  had a strong year with l ike-for-l ike growth of 27%,
with growth across  a l l  key international  regions.
 
The Group performed strongly in the Res idenIal  R M I  D I Y market, with results  up 15.6% on a l ike-for-l ike bas is . The Group
also grew by 9.3% in the new res idenIal  sector and had growth of 6.7% in res idenIal  R M I  profess ional  sector. W ithin the

non-res idenIal  sector, the Group's  result improved by 4.7% on a l ike for l ike bas is , however the infrastructure sector

struggled with a  decl ine of 11.0% on a l ike-for-l ike bas is .
 
We group our customers  into the fol lowing sales  channels :
·    Retail: Distributors  serving consumers  only, including DIY sheds, pure-play onl ine retai lers  and grocers
·    Hybrid: Distributors  serving both consumers  and profess ionals , typical ly with multi -channel  service options
·    Professional Wholesale: Distributors  serving profess ionals  only, largely via  a  branch network
·    Professional Projects: Sale agreed by Luceco direct with profess ionals , but largely ful fi l led via  Profess ional  Wholesale
 
Performance by sales  channel  was  as  fol lows:
 

Like-for-like revenue by sales channel:
2024

£m
2024

% of total
2023

% of total
Change vs

2023 %
Retai l 58.5 26.4% 22.4% +23.4%
Hybrid 48.4 21.9% 23.9% -1.8%
Profess ional  Wholesale 57.8 26.1% 25.2% +6.5%
Profess ional  Projects 56.5 25.6% 28.5% -2.6%
Like-for-like revenue 221.2 100.0% 100.0% +5.8%
Currency impact (2.6)
Acquis i tions/closures 23.9
TOTAL 242.5 +16.0%
 
Our Hybrid and Retai l  channels  represent just under hal f of the Group's  l ike-for-l ike revenue in the year and combined grew
by 10.5%, with strong volume growth in Portable Power, LED and EV products . The Profess ional  channel , including
Wholesale and Projects , grew by 1.8% overal l  in the period, reflecting a  more di fficult channel  to market, largely as  a  result
of decl ines  in LED impacted by the infrastructure market.
 
The Group is  particularly encouraged by the EV charger performance, which has  grown by over 26% in the year.  We are
beginning to see traction in the commercial  markets  which wi l l  provide a strong growth opportunity for 2025 and beyond,
together with our retai l  proposition.
 

2024 2023 Change vs



Revenue by geographical location of customer:
2024

£m
2023

£m
Change vs

2023 %
UK 184.2 173.6 +6.1%
Americas 22.5 8.6 +161.6%
Europe 21.5 12.9 +66.7%
Middle East and Africa 10.3 8.3 +24.1%
Asia Paci fic 4.0 5.6 -28.6%
Total revenue 242.5 209.0 +16.0%
 
Revenue by geography and locaIon of the customer highl ights  the strong internaIonal  progress  we have seen across  the
Middle East, Europe and Americas . European sales  in Spain were encouraging in 2024 as  the bus iness  began to get tracIon
in the Spanish market. Sales  improved in the Americas , largely as  a  result of stronger sales  from Portable Power in North
America and our growing South American LED offering. Sales  in the Middle East and Africa surpassed expectaIons with a
strong second hal f in 2024.
 
Profitability
 
Adjusted Operating Profi t of £29.0m for 2024 was £5.0m ahead of 2023. The key drivers  were as  fol lows:
 

 
Adjusted Operating profit

Bridge
from
2023

£m

Bridge
from
2022

£m
2023/2022 24.0 22.0
Acquis i tions/closures 1.9 0.6
Like-for-l ike increase1 3.0 3.5
Currency movements 0.1 (2.1)
2024/2023 29.0 24.0

1.      Like-for-l ike profi t movements  exclude the impact of currency movements  and acquis i tions/closures
 
The net impact of acquis iIons and closures  was  £1.9m, which reflects  the acquis iIons of D-Line and C M D during the year.
O veral l  Adjusted O peraIng P rofit, excluding acquis iIons/closures  and at Constant Currency improved by £3.0m, driven
largely by the stronger performance across  the UK channels .
 
The currency ta i lwind in the year was  £0.1m on Adjusted O peraIng P rofit, which was a  combinaIon of favourable R M B on
Chinese products  and adverse US D on the sales  of products . Adjusted O peraIng Costs  increased by £10.2m at Constant
Currency. The majori ty of the increase came from wage increases  and associated costs . Excluding the impact of
acquis iIons, costs  increased by £4.3m, which was a  7.4% increase on a Constant Currency bas is . O veral l  Adjusted
O peraIng Margin of 12.0% is  a  strong result, up 50 bas is  points  on the prior year. We conInue to bel ieve the Group's
strong operating leverage can improve operating margins  further within the range of 12%-15%.
 
The table below provides  a  more detai led view of the currency impact in the year:
 

Adjusted
2024

actual1

£m

Currency impact

Adjusted
2024

at
Constant

Currency2

£m

Constant Currency
variance to 2023

Adjusted
2023

actual
£m£m % £m %

Revenue 242.5 (2.6) (1.2%) 245.1 36.1 +17.2% 209.0
Cost of sales (145.3) 2.4 (1.9%) (147.7) (21.0) +16.6% (126.7)
Gross profit 97.2 (0.2) (0.2%) 97.4 15.1 +18.3% 82.3
Gross  margin % 40.1% +0.4ppts 39.7% +0.3ppts 39.4%
Operating costs (68.2) 0.3 (0.5%) (68.5) (10.2) +17.5% (58.3)
Operating profit 29.0 0.1 +0.4% 28.9 4.9 +20.4% 24.0
Operating margin  % 12.0% +0.2ppts 11.8% +0.3ppts 11.5%

1.      Year ended 31 December 2024 trans lated at 2024 average exchange rates

2.      Year ended 31 December 2024 trans lated at 2023 average exchange rates
 

 
Net finance expense
 
Adjusted Net F inance Expense increased by £1.3m, reflecIng an increase in our faci l i ty, which is  in place to support the
Group's  acquis i tions  and working capital  requirements  as  the Group grows.
 
Taxation
 
The effecIve tax rate on Adjusted P rofit Before Tax increased by 4.5ppts  to 22.9% in 2024 fol lowing some advantageous tax
rates  in 2023 and a higher proportion of the Group on a UK tax rate of 25%.
 
Adjusted Free Cash Flow
 
 
Adjusted Free Cash Flow (£m)

Adjusted1

2024
Adjusted1

2023
Operating profi t 29.0 24.0
Depreciation and amortisation 7.9 7.4
EBITDA 36.9 31.4
Changes  in working capital (17.2) 0.2
Other i tems 2.0 1.0
Operating Cash flow 21.7 32.6
Operating cash convers ion2 74.8% 135.8%
Net capital  expenditure (7.8) (8.2)
Interest paid (4.1) (2.8)
Tax paid (6.3) (3.6)
Free Cash Flow 3.5 18.0



Free Cash Flow 3.5 18.0
Free Cash Flow as % Revenue 1.4% 8.6%

1.      A reconci l iation of the reported to Adjusted results  i s  shown within note 1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements

2.      Adjusted Operating Cash Convers ion is  defined as  Adjusted Operating Cash Flow divided by Adjusted Operating Profi t
 
The Group 's  Adjusted Free Cash Flow of £3.5m in the period was impacted by a  strong final  quarter which resulted in a
year-end Iming difference on trade and other receivables . Trade and other receivables  were a cash ouNlow of £17.1m in
2024 compared to a  £3.1m outflow in 2023. Our expectation is  that this  wi l l  reverse in 2025.
 
Capital expenditure
 
The Group's  net capital  expenditure cons ists  of capital ised product development costs  and the purchase of phys ical  assets .

Capex was £7.8m (2023: £8.2m) and represented 3.2% of revenue (2023: 3.9%) which is  in our target range of 3 4%. We

conInue to see opportuniIes  to invest in low risk, high return automaIon projects  in our Chinese producIon faci l i ty and
continue to invest in R&D projects , particularly in relation to acquired bus inesses.
 
Capital structure and returns
 
Return on capital
 
Return on Capital  I nvested was lower than the prior year at 20.2% (2023: 20.6%) which remains  above our target range of
20% or higher. As  previous ly flagged, our returns  wi l l  natural ly moderate as  Luceco trans iIons from a Group created
organical ly to one growing via  M&A as  wel l  (with i ts  required investment in goodwi l l ).
 
Capital structure
 
The bus iness  continues  to cons istently generate ample cash flow to support i ts  dividend pol icy and fund M&A activi ty.
 
£m 2024 2023 Change
Reported net debt £75.1m £22.8m +229.3%
Less: IFRS 16 finance leases (£7.2m) (£5.1m) +41.5%
Finance Leases  - pre-IFRS 16 £0.7m £0.7m -
Bank Net Debt £68.6m £18.4m +272.6%
Bank Net Debt : Bank EBITDA 1.6x 0.6x 166.7%
 
During the year, the Group acquired two bus inesses  for a  total  of £37.5m including cash received on acquis iIon which has
impacted the reported net debt in the period together with a  Iming issue on trade and other receivables  at the end of the

year of £17.1m. The Group's  non uIl ised faci l iIes  total led £54.3m. The Group's  exisIng revolving credit faci l i ty was

expanded by £40m in the period, via  the accordion faci l i ty avai lable under the terms of i ts  syndicated bank faci l iIes. The
Group is  currently in discuss ions  regarding a  new banking faci l i ty in order to replace the exisIng faci l i ty; these
discuss ions  are progress ing in l ine with expectations.
 
The Company's  covenant pos ition and headroom at 31 December 2024 was as  fol lows:
 
2024 covenant position Covenant Actual Headroom
Bank Net Debt : Bank EBITDA 3.0 : 1 1.6 : 1 Bank Net Debt headroom: £56.5m

Bank EBITDA headroom: £18.8m
Bank EBITDA : Adjusted Net Finance Expense 4.0 : 1 10.2 : 1 Bank EBITDA headroom: £25.3m

Net Finance Expense headroom: £6.3m

 
 
The key measures  which management use to evaluate the Group's  use of i ts  financial  resources  and capital  management
are set out below:

 
2024 2023

Adjusted1 Earnings  Per Share (pence) 12.5 11.1
Covenant Net Debt : Covenant EBITDA (times) 1.6x 0.6x
Adjusted1 Free Cash Flow (£m) 3.5 18.0

1.      Note 1 in the notes  to the consol idated financial  s tatements  provides  an explanation of the Group's  a l ternative

performance measures.
 
The Group compl ied with i ts  covenant requirements  throughout the year with s ignificant headroom on al l  metrics . The
Group has  conducted a ful l  going concern review and this  i s  outl ined on page 130 of the Annual  Report and Financial
Statements . The Group has  a  strong balance sheet and s ignificant faci l i ty headroom under even a severe but plaus ible
downside scenario. No covenant breaches  occur in any of our severe but plaus ible downside scenarios , a l l  of which are
before any mitigating actions, i l lustrating our financial  res i l ience.
 
Dividends
 

The Board is  proposing to pay a  final  dividend of 3.3p, taking the ful l year dividend to 5.0p, represenIng a payout of 40% of

earnings. The final  dividend wi l l  be paid on 22 May 2025 to shareholders  on the registrar on 11 Apri l  2025.



earnings. The final  dividend wi l l  be paid on 22 May 2025 to shareholders  on the registrar on 11 Apri l  2025.
 
Operating segment review
 
The revenue and profit generated by the Group's  operaIng segments  are shown below. O peraIng profits  are stated aMer the
proportional  a l location of fixed central  overheads.
 
Wiring Accessories
 

Adjusted1 Reported
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Revenue £108.9m £82.6m +31.8% £108.9m £82.6m +31.8%
Operating profit £19.1m £15.0m +27.3% £14.9m £15.3m -2.6%
Operating margin % 17.5% 18.2% -0.7ppts 13.7% 18.5% -4.8ppts

1.      A reconci l iation of the reported to Adjusted results  i s  shown within note 1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements
 
W iring Accessories  is  the Group's  most profitable segment, generaIng 66% of the Group's  operaIng profit and 45% of i ts
revenue, under a  brand establ ished over 80 years  ago.
 
Sales  into the Wiring Accessories  segment were £108.9m, which was a  s igni ficant increase of 32% over 2023, largely driven
by the Hybrid and Retai l  channels . The Adjusted O peraIng Margin was  17.5% (2023: 18.2%) which remains  a  key driver for
the Group's  overal l  profi tabi l i ty.
 
LED Lighting
 

Adjusted1 Reported
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Revenue £78.4m £79.0m -0.8% £78.4m £79.0m -0.8%
Operating profit £4.1m £4.7m -12.8% £2.7m £3.2m -15.6%
Operating margin % 5.2% 5.9% -0.7ppts 3.4% 4.1% -0.7ppts

1.      A reconci l iation of the reported to Adjusted results  i s  shown within note 1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements
 

The Group entered the l ighIng market in 2013 as  the industry adopted LED technology and i t now represents  32% of Group
revenue.
 
Revenue was 0.8% behind the prior year as  a  result of the headwinds  we have faced in the I nfrastructure channel , however
this  was  nearly a l l  offset by gains  in the internaIonal  bus inesses  and a recovery in the UK  markets  and channels .
O peraIng profit was  behind the prior year, reflecIng wage inflaIon in the UK , with operaIng margin at 5.2%. Demand
remains  parIcularly strong in the P rofess ional  P rojects  space, as  demand for energy-saving retrofits  within the non-
res identia l  and infrastructure sectors  continues  to grow.
 
Portable Power
 

Adjusted1 Reported
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Revenue £55.2m £47.4m +16.5% £55.2m £47.4m +16.5%
Operating profit £5.8m £4.3m +34.9% £5.6m £3.7m +51.4%
Operating margin % 10.5% 9.1% +1.4ppts 10.1% 7.8% +2.3ppts

1.      A reconci l iation of the reported to Adjusted results  i s  shown within note 1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements
 
The Portable Power segment cons ists  of two main elements:
 

·      Cable reels , extens ion leads  and associated accessories  sold under the Masterplug brand
·      EV chargers  sold under the Sync Energy brand

 
The Group enjoys  a  leading pos iIon in the UK  portable power market. The bus iness  generates  23% of Group revenue and
20% of Group Adjusted O peraIng P rofit. Revenue increased by a  s ignificant 16% in the period with strong performance in
the Americas  and UK regions.
 
EV charger sales  total led £9.8m, a  growth rate of 26% in the period, which was highly encouraging. We remain exci ted
about the opportuniIes, in both retai l  and commercial  spaces, that this  new sector wi l l  provide as  the vehicle market
moves towards  electri fication.
 
Going concern
 
The Directors  have a reasonable expectaIon that the Group has  adequate resources  to conInue in operaIonal  existence
for the foreseeable future and as  such have appl ied the going concern principle in preparing the Annual  Report and
Financial  Statements . This  i s  cons idered in more detai l  in note 1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements . The Group's
Viabi l i ty Statement can be found on pages  69 to 70 and the Group's  Going Concern Statement can be found on page 130 of
the Annual  Report and Financial  Statements .
 
WILL HOY
Chief Financial  Officer
 
25 March 2025
 
 

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") update

 
We continue to make progress on our ESG workstreams:

 
·    We committed to the Science Based Targets  Ini tiative (SBTi ) and this  was  val idated by the SBTi  during the fi rst hal f of the



·    We committed to the Science Based Targets  Ini tiative (SBTi ) and this  was  val idated by the SBTi  during the fi rst hal f of the
year. This  means we have committed to reductions  in carbon emiss ions  over the near-term consistent with the Paris
Agreement

·    Achievement of an improved management-level  score ("B") attained in March 2024 from the Carbon Disclosure Project
·    We have del ivered s ignificant progress  against our low carbon product revenue target and conInue to work towards

£100m of such revenue
·    We continue to improve our packaging speci fications, particularly around plastic packaging.
 
Key achievements by area
 
Products and services
 
·    Acquis i tion of Sync EV and launch of s ingle-phase Mode 3 EV chargers  under the joint BG Sync EV brand
·    £83m of revenue from low carbon product categories  in ful l  year 2024, del ivering s igni ficant progress  against our

£100m low carbon product revenue target for 2025
·    3.5-fold increase in revenue from the sale of l ighting control  devices  into l ighting projects  in ful l  year 2023

 
Supply Chain
 
·    Insourcing of EV charger production within our China manufacturing faci l i ty with 100% renewable electrici ty supply
·    Evaluation of key suppl iers ' phys ical  cl imate risk exposure to understand vulnerabi l i ties  within our supply chain
 
Research and Development
 
·    Special is t R&D function in China and the UK
·    Development of higher power, three-phase EV chargers  for larger homes and commercial  premises
·    Investigating on-street EV charging solutions  within DW Windsor
·    Dedicated optical  engineer focus ing on improvements  to lens  des ign to improve l ighting efficiency
·    Working towards  the development of environmental  product declarations  (EPD) and industry best practise on ci rcular

des ign in l ighting
 
Operations
 
·    Sourced renewable electrici ty for a l l  group operations  for 2024 and 2023, bringing our scope 2 emiss ions  to zero.
·    Offsetting res idual  Scope 1 emiss ions  for 2024 and 2023
·    Investment into energy efficiency and automation projects  within the China manufacturing faci l i ty including investment

in our second solar PV array
·    Evaluation of our key locations  (manufacturing and distribution centres) to better understand phys ical  cl imate risk

exposure to understand vulnerabi l i ties  across  direct operations
·    Al l  plastic packaging is  recyclable with a  minimum 30% recycled content
·    Instal lation of EV chargers  in our Tel ford operation
 
 
Our ESG objectives for 2025 are as follows:
 
·      Develop our Home Energy Management system
·      Grow EV further in the domestic space and expand into the commercial  space
·      Grow LED in our UK Trade and Projects  channels  and our product proposition
·      Deeper engagement with suppl iers  and customers
·      Ful ly incorporate the recent acquis i tions  of CMD and D-Line into our GHG reporting and our science-based targets
 
 
 

Principal risks and uncertainties
 
 
The Board is  responsible for idenIfying, reviewing and managing bus iness  and operaIonal  risk. I t i s  a lso responsible for
determining the level  of risk appeIte i t i s  prepared to take in the ordinary course of bus iness  to achieve the Group's
strategic objecIves  and to ensure that appropriate and sufficient resource is  a l located to the management and miIgaIon
of risk.
 
I n addiIon to the risk management framework, the Board has  delegated responsibi l i ty to the Audit CommiQee for reviewing
the overal l  process  of assess ing bus iness  risks  and managing the impact on the Group. The Group's  risk management
process  is  set out below.
 
The principal  risks  idenIfied, and acIons taken to minimise their potenIal  impact are included below. This  i s  not an
exhaustive l i s t but those the Board bel ieves  may have an adverse effect on the Group's  cash flow and profi tabi l i ty.
 
See also pages  64 to 68 in the 2024 Annual  Report and Financial  Statements .
 
I n determining whether i t i s  appropriate to adopt the going concern bas is  in the preparaIon of the financial  s tatements ,
the Directors  have cons idered these principal  risks  and uncertainties . The Viabi l i ty Statement on pages  69 to 70 of the 2024
Annual  Report and Financial  Statements  cons iders  the prospects  of the Group should a  number of these risks  crystal l i se
together.
 
Principal risks
 
 
Concentration risks associated with operations:
Risk and impact:
·    The Group's  products  are

overwhelmingly sourced from
one country (China) and a large
proportion are made in one
location (Jiaxing)

Mitigation
·   UK buffer stock is  held in the event of supply disruption in China
·   Al l  suppl iers  are provided with vis ibi l i ty of forward orders  and supply

issues  are discussed upfront
·   P roducIon faci l iIes  in China are spread across  mulIple bui ldings  on

the same s i te to mitigate risk



location (Jiaxing)
·    Disruption to our Jiaxing faci l i ty

could compromise our abi l i ty to
serve our customers, including
issues  aris ing from a
constrained global  energy
market

·    General  disruption, including to
shipping routes  between China
and our sel l ing markets
(particularly the UK) could
increase our costs  or l imit our
abi l i ty to serve our markets . 
There has  been some disruption
in the Red Sea throughout 2024

·    China could be impacted by
events  in Ukraine/Russ ia, which
impacts  our abi l i ty to
manufacture products

the same s i te to mitigate risk
·   The Group owns i ts  product des igns  and producIon tool ing, a l lowing

manufacturing to be moved between suppl iers  more eas i ly
·   Business  Continuity Plans  are in place for Jiaxing s i te
·   Business  I nterrupIon I nsurance is  in place for the Jiaxing s i te, Tel ford

s i te and our OEM suppl ier of Portable Power products
 

 
 
 
 
Concentration risks associated with customers and products:
Risk and impact:
·      The Group has  a  number of key

customers  representing ci rca
50% of Group revenue. A change
in demand from these
customers  could result in
reduced sales  and profi ts

·      The Group's  committed order
book extends 2-3 months
forward. Orders  thereafter are
uncommitted

·      Geopol i tical  instabi l i ty creates
prices  changes  and shortages  of
materia ls  and the impact of
inflation on input costs  from
energy and materia l  costs
impacting product cost and
profi tabi l i ty.  This  has  been
prevalent with copper-based
products  due to increas ing
global  demand as
electri fication escalates  in
many sectors

·      A change in energy prices  could
increase the Group's  operating
costs , reduce profi ts  and/or
price competitiveness

·      The Group has  a  materia l
exposure to the purchase price
of copper. An adverse move
could reduce profi ts  and/or
price competitiveness

Mitigation
·  Key customers  typical ly fol low a tender process , providing vis ibi l i ty of

bus iness  wins  and losses
·  Large customers  typical ly take 6-12 months  to implement a  large range

change throughout their networks , giving us  time to react
·  The cost of range changes  for large customers  is  high, reducing the

l ikel ihood of occurrence
·  Relationships  with the Group's  large customers  are particularly

establ ished
·  Capacity at our factory and at our OEM partners  in China can be

changed quickly and cost effectively
·  The Group hedges  i ts  USD:RMB and copper exposures  according to a

Board-approved pol icy. The hedging matches  the duration of any fixed
sel l ing price commitment offered to customers

·  The Group has  fixed price gas  and electrici ty contracts  covering a
s igni ficant proportion of i ts  energy use

·  Appl ication of the hedging pol icy is  reviewed by the Board

 
Macroeconomic, political and environmental:
Risk and impact:
·      A deterioration in trade

relations  between the UK and
China could disrupt product
supply and/or increase costs .
 Tari ff impacts  are poss ible with
the USA and China which could
have knock-on impacts  for other
tari ff arrangements

·      The Group has  a  concentrated
exposure to the UK market. UK
economic headwinds  could
reduce profi ts

·      A fai lure to respond to
governmental , cultural ,
customer or investor
requirements  on ESG in the
fol lowing areas: changing
customer behaviour and
demands (e.g. electric vehicle
charging), increased
stakeholder concern, negative
feedback or non-compl iance on
ESG strategy, increased severi ty
and frequency of extreme
weather events  accelerating ESG
progress . Al l  of which could
result in reduced profi ts  or a
reduced share price

Mitigation
·   We have clear ESG objectives  tied to management compensation plans.

Our progress  is  vis ible via  independent bodies  such as  CPD and SBTi
·   The Group is  expanding and developing i ts  product range of low carbon

products  (e.g. LED l ighting and electric vehicle chargers)
·   The Group is  divers i fied by market segment within the UK, reducing risk
·   The Group is  largely exposed to the RMI cycle, which is  less  susceptible

to macroeconomic forces
·   The Group's  overseas  bus inesses  are expected to grow faster than the

UK, di luting the UK exposure
·   UK buffer stock is  held in the event of supply disruption in China
·   A "China Plus  1" sourcing strategy is  being developed
·   Management l ia ises  closely with investors  and customers  to

understand their future ESG needs and responds accordingly



reduced share price
 
Loss of IT / data:
Risk and impact:
·      Loss  of IT functional i ty would

compromise operations,
leading to increased costs  or
lost sales

·      Loss  of sens itive data from our
IT environment would expose
the Group to regulatory, legal  or
reputational  risk

·      Increased cloud server usage
increases  risk of data loss  or
compromise and cyber risk i s
on a upward trend impacting
operations  and reputational
risk

Mitigation
·   Market-leading cyber securi ty tools  and monitoring are in place
·   Market-leading data backup tools  are in place
·   IT disaster recovery plans  are in place throughout the Group
·   We conduct regular penetration testing
·   We conduct regular Group-wide cyber securi ty tra ining for employees
·   IT incidents  are reported to the Board

 
People and labour shortages:
Risk and impact:
·      Loss  of key employees  could

damage bus iness  relationships
or result in a  loss  of knowledge

·      A shortage of avai lable labour
for key roles  could disrupt
operations  and impact long-
term progress

·      Depending on the job role and
team, COVID-19 has  changed
employee's  and employer's
work place expectations. A
more fluid working
environment in both the office
and home is  more common
place. The risk of not adapting
to this  change in working
practices  could lead to loss  of
employees  and an inabi l i ty to
attract ta lent

Mitigation
·   Key relationships  are typical ly shared between more than one employee
·   The Group's  service offering is  multi -faceted, reducing the risk that the

loss  of an employee would result in lost sales
·   Retention of key employees  is  driven by long-term personal  development

and incentive plans  and ensuring compensation is  regularly
benchmarked for competitiveness . These plans  are reviewed by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees

·   Workforce engagement surveys  ensure employee needs are identi fied
and addressed, promoting retention

·   Adoption of hybrid practices  within appropriate teams and locations

 
Acquisitions:
Risk and impact:
·      An i l l -judged acquis i tion could

reduce Group profi t and return
on capital

·      Unable to grow or develop an
acquired bus iness  in l ine with
expectations, leading to lower
profi ts

·      The Group's  acquis i tion
strategy could
compromise/distract the
execution of strategy in other
areas

Mitigation
·   Our acquis i tion strategy is  set by the Board
·   Board members  possess  s igni ficant M&A experience
·   The acquis i tion strategy is  implemented by an experienced in-house

team
·   The Group's  key markets  are relatively stable, meaning acquis i tion

targets  typical ly have an establ ished track record
·   Individual  acquis i tions  are typical ly smal l  relative to the s ize of the

Group, reducing the impact of each deal  and reducing potentia l
distraction

·   The Group conducts  extens ive due di l igence prior to acquis i tion
·   Al l  acquis i tions  are approved by the Board
 

 
Legal and Regulatory:
Risk and impact:
·     The Group could infringe upon

the IP of others , leading to legal
cla ims

·     The Group's  products  could fa i l
to meet regulatory requirements
or experience qual i ty fa i lures ,
resulting in legal  cla ims and/or
reputational  damage

·     The Group's  bus inesses  could
fai l  to meet regulatory
requirements  in their countries
of operation

·     The Group could fa i l  to comply
with local  tax laws, particularly
regarding transfer pricing

Mitigation
·      The Group receives  IP advice from external  experts
·      The Group's  products  are certi fied for use prior to launch by external

experts
·      The Group has  extens ive qual i ty assurance resources  in the UK and

China
·      Suppl iers  are required to adhere to a  strict Code of Conduct
·      Suppl ier compl iance with the Code of Conduct is  audited by our in-

house teams
·      Product l iabi l i ty cla ims are reported to the Board
·      Product l iabi l i ty insurance is  in place global ly
·      The Group's  transfer pricing pol icies  are reviewed regularly with the

help of external  experts
 

 
Finance and treasury:
Risk and impact:
·      The Group could fa i l  to provide

sufficient funding l iquidity for
i ts  operations

·      The Group has  a  materia l
exposure to movements  in the
USD and RMB currency rates .
An adverse move could reduce
short-term profi ts  and/or long-
term competitiveness

Mitigation
·       The Group hedges  i ts  currency exposures  according to a  Board-

approved pol icy. The hedging matches  the duration of any fixed sel l ing
price commitment offered to customers

·       The Group has  a  clear Capital  Structure pol icy that i s  des igned to
provide sufficient l iquidity

·       The Capital  Structure pol icy is  implemented by Treasury experts  and
monitored by the Board

·       The Treasury team prepares  regular cash flow forecasts
·       The Group's  financial  s tatements  require relatively few judgements  or



term competitiveness
·      The Group could fa i l  to report

i ts  financial  performance
accurately, leading to
inappropriate decis ion-making
and regulatory breaches

·      The Group could suffer fraud
across  i ts  widespread
operations

·       The Group's  financial  s tatements  require relatively few judgements  or
estimates, reducing the risk of misstatement

·       The Group's  accounting pol icies  and internal  accounting manual  are
approved by the Board

·       The Group operates  two main accounting centres  in the UK and China,
which are overseen closely by the Group Finance team

·       The Group has  invested in market-leading financial  accounting and
reporting software

 
 
 

Statement of Directors' responsibilities
 
 
The fol lowing statement wi l l  be contained in the 2024 Annual  Report and Financial  Statements .
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:
 

·      The financial  s tatements , prepared in accordance with the appl icable set of accounting standards, give a  true and
fair view of the assets , l iabi l i ties , financial  pos ition and profi t or loss  of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consol idation taken as  a  whole; and
 

·      The Strategic Report includes  a  fa i r review of the development and performance of the bus iness  and the pos ition
of the issuer and the undertakings  included in the consol idation, taken as  a  whole, together with a description of
the principal  risks  and uncertainties  that they face.
 

·      We consider the Annual  Report and Financial  Statements , taken as  a  whole, i s  fa i r, balanced and understandable
and provides  the information necessary for shareholders  to assess  the Group's  pos ition and performance,
bus iness  model  and strategy.

 
 
 
JOHN HORNBY
Chief Executive Officer
 
WILL HOY
Chief Financial  Officer
 
25 March 2025
 
 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
 
For the year ended 31 December 2024
 

  2024 2023
Note £m £m

Revenue 2 242.5 209.0
Cost of sales (145.0) (126.2)
Gross profit 97.5 82.8
Distribution expenses (11.3) (8.6)
Administrative expenses (63.0) (52.0)
Operating profit 2,3 23.2 22.2
Finance expense (4.3) (3.3)
Net finance expense (4.3) (3.3)
Profit before tax 18.9 18.9
Taxation 4 (4.3) (2.2)
Profit for the period 14.6 16.7
Earnings per share (p)  
Basic 5 9.5p 10.8p
Ful ly di luted 5 9.5p 10.7p

1.      Re-presented in respect of 2022 is  detai led in note 1
 
Adjusted1 Results
 

  2024 2023
Note £m £m

Adjusted operating profi t 1 29.0 24.0
Adjusted profi t before tax 1 24.9 21.2
Adjusted profi t after tax 1 19.2 17.3
Adjusted bas ic earnings  per share 5 12.5p 11.1p
Adjusted di luted earnings  per share 5 12.5p 11.1p

1.      See note 1 for a l ternative performance measures
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 
For the year ended 31 December 2024
 

2024 2023
£m £m

Profi t for the period 14.6 16.7
Other comprehensive income - amounts  that may be reclass i fied to profi t or loss  in the
future:

 

Foreign exchange trans lation di fferences  - foreign operations (0.1) (2.5)
Foreign currency trans lation di fferences  on investments  in overseas  enti ties (1.4) -
Other comprehensive income - amounts  that wi l l  not be reclass i fied to profi t or loss :  
Changes  in the fa ir value of equity investments  at fa i r value through other
comprehensive income

(0.8) 0.6

Total comprehensive income for the year 12.3 14.8
 
Al l  results  are from continuing operations.
 
The accompanying notes  form part of these financial  s tatements .
 
 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
 
At 31 December 2024
 

2024 2023
Note £m £m

Non-current assets  
Property, plant and equipment 7 24.7 20.0
Right-of-use assets 9.7 7.6
Intangible assets 8 65.1 40.1
Investment 1.8 2.3
Financial  assets  measured at fa i r value through profi t or loss - 0.4
Deferred tax asset 0.9 2.5

102.2 72.9
Current assets  
Inventories 53.8 40.8
Trade and other receivables 80.1 55.7
Financial  assets  measured at fa i r value through profi t or loss 0.4 0.3
Current tax asset 4.2 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 4.6

142.6 103.9
Total assets 244.8 176.8
Current liabilities  
Trade and other payables 59.2 47.9
Financial  l iabi l i ties  measured at fa i r value through profi t or loss 1.2 1.5
Other financial  l iabi l i ties 2.8 2.0

63.2 51.4
Non-current liabilities  
Interest-bearing loans  and borrowings 9 72.0 22.3
Other financial  l iabi l i ties 4.4 3.1
Deferred tax l iabi l i ty 5.2 3.6
Financial  l iabi l i ties  measured at fa i r value through profi t or loss 0.2 0.3
Provis ions 4.0 2.3

85.8 31.6
Total liabilities 149.0 83.0
Net assets 95.8 93.8
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  
Share capital 0.1 0.1
Share premium 24.8 24.8
Other reserve (1.6) 0.7
Treasury reserve (11.6) (8.6)
Retained earnings 84.1 76.8
Total equity 95.8 93.8
 
The accompanying notes  form part of these financial  s tatements .
 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
 
For the year ended 31 December 2024
 

Share ShareTrans lation Financial Retained Treasury Total
capital premium reserve Assets  at

FVOCI
earnings reserve equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2023 0.1 24.8 2.6 - 67.9 (8.7) 86.7
Total comprehensive income
Profi t for the period - - - - 16.7 - 16.7
Investment revaluation - - - 0.6 - - 0.6
Currency trans lation di fferences - - (2.5) - - - (2.5)
Total comprehensive income for the
period

- - (2.5) 0.6 16.7 - 14.8



Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:
Dividends - - - - (7.2) - (7.2)
Purchase of own shares - - - - - (1.6) (1.6)
Disposal  of own shares - - - - (1.7) 1.7 -
Deferred tax on share-based payment
transactions

- - - - 0.2 - 0.2

Share-based payments  charge - - - - 0.9 - 0.9
Total transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

- - - - (7.8) 0.1 (7.7)

Balance at 31 December 2023 0.1 24.8 0.1 0.6 76.8 (8.6) 93.8
        
Balance at 1 January 2024 0.1 24.8 0.1 0.6 76.8 (8.6) 93.8
Total comprehensive income        
Profi t for the period - - - - 14.6 - 14.6
Investment revaluation - - - (0.8) - - (0.8)
Foreign currency trans lation di fferences
on investments  in overseas  enti ties

- - (1.4) - - - (1.4)

Currency trans lation di fferences - - (0.1) - - - (0.1)
Total comprehensive income for the
period

- - (1.5) (0.8) 14.6 - 12.3

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

 

Dividends - - - - (7.5) - (7.5)
Purchase of own shares - - - - - (4.7) (4.7)
Disposal  of own shares - - - - (1.7) 1.7 -
Deferred tax on share-based payment
transactions

- - - - (0.2) - (0.2)

Corporation tax on foreign currency
trans lation di fferences  on investments
in overseas  enti ties

- - - - 0.4 - 0.4

Corporation tax on share-based
payment transactions

- - - - 0.2 - 0.2

Share-based payments  charge - - - - 1.5 - 1.5
Total transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

- - - - (7.3) (3.0) (10.3)

Balance at 31 December 2024 0.1 24.8 (1.4) (0.2) 84.1 (11.6) 95.8
 
The  a ccompa nyi ng note s  form pa rt of the s e s  fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts .
 
 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
 
For the year ended 31 December 2024
 

 Note 2024
£m

2023
£m

Cash flows from operating activities  
Profi t for the period 14.6 16.7
Adjustments  for:  
Depreciation and amortisation 7,8 10.2 9.3
Finance expense 4.3 3.3
Taxation 4 4.3 2.2
Loss  on disposal  of tangible assets 0.5 0.2
Share-based payments  charge 1.5 0.8
Other non-cash i tems (0.3) (0.5)

Operating cash flow before movement in working capital 35.1 32.0
(Increase) in trade and other receivables (17.1) (3.1)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (2.8) 5.9
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 5.8 (2.2)
Cash from operations 21.0 32.6
Tax paid (6.3) (3.6)
Net cash from operating activities 14.7 29.0
Cash flows from investing activities  
Acquis i tion of property, plant and equipment2 7 (5.0) (6.4)
Acquis i tion of other intangible assets 8 (2.9) (1.8)
Disposal  of tangible assets 7 0.1 -
Acquis i tion of subs idiary 10 (37.5) -
Investment (0.3) (1.7)
Net cash used in investing activities  (45.6) (9.9)
Cash flows from financing activities   
Origination/(Repayment) of borrowings 49.5 (6.1)
Interest paid (4.1) (2.8)
Dividends paid (7.5) (7.2)
Finance lease l iabi l i ties (2.7) (2.1)
Purchase of own shares (4.7) (1.6)
Net cash from financing activities 30.5 (19.8)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (0.4) (0.7)
Cash and cash equivalents  at 1 January 4.6 5.3
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations  on cash held (0.1) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 4.1 4.6
 
 
The  a ccompa nyi ng note s  form pa rt of the s e s  fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts .



The  a ccompa nyi ng note s  form pa rt of the s e s  fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts .
 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
For the year ended 31 December 2024
 
1. Basis of preparation
 
Luceco plc (the "Company") i s  a  company incorporated and domici led in the United K ingdom. These consol idated financial
statements  for the year ended 31 December 2024 comprise the Company and i ts  subs idiaries  (together referred to as  the
"Group"). The Group is  primari ly involved in the manufacturing and distribuIng of high qual i ty and innovaIve wiring
accessories , LED l ighting and portable power products  to global  markets  (see note 2).
 
The financial  informaIon is  derived from the Group's  consol idated financial  s tatements  for the year ended 31 December
2024, which have been prepared on the going concern bas is  in accordance with UK  adopted internaIonal  accounIng
standards  (UK  adopted I F RS) in conformity with the requirements  of the Companies  Act 2006. The financial  s tatements  have
been prepared on the historical  cost bas is  except for certain financial  instruments  which are carried at fa i r value.
 
The financial  informaIon set out above does  not consItute the Company's  statutory accounts  for the years  ended 31

December 2024 and 31 December 2023 but is  derived from those accounts . Statutory accounts  for 2023 have been

del ivered to the Registrar of Companies , and those for 2024 wi l l  be del ivered in due course. The Auditors  have reported on

the 2024 statutory accounts; their report was  (i ) unqual ified and (i i ) did not contain a  statement under SecIon 498 (2) or

(3) of the Companies  Act 2006. The text of the Auditors ' report can be found in the Company's  ful l  2024 Annual  Report and

Financial  Statements  on pages  116 to 123.

 

The 2024 Annual  Report and Financial  Statements  and the NoIce of the 2024 Annual  General  MeeIng wi l l  be publ ished on

the Company's  website at http://www.lucecoplc.com as  soon as  pracIcable. They wi l l  a lso be submiQed to the NaIonal

Storage Mechanism where they wi l l  be avai lable for inspection at:

 

https://data.fca.org.uk/#/nsm/nationalstoragemechanism.

 

The Group's  accounIng pol icies  can be referred to in note 1 of the consol idated financial  s tatements  in the 2023 Annual

Report and Financial  Statements .
 
Going concern
 
The Directors  have concluded that i t i s  reasonable to adopt a  going concern bas is  in preparing the financial  s tatements .
 This  i s  based on an expectaIon that the Company and the Group have adequate resources  to conInue in operaIonal
existence for at least 12 months  from the date of s igning these accounts  and our cash flow forecasts  support this . The
Group has  reported a profit before tax of £18.9m for the year to 31 December 2024 (2023: £18.9m), has  net current assets
of £79.4m (2023: £52.5m) and net assets  of £95.8m (2023: £93.8m), net debt of £75.1m (2022: £22.8m) and net cash from
operaIng acIviIes  of £14.7m (2023: £29.0m). The bank faci l iIes  mature on 30 September 2026. The Group is  currently in
discuss ions  regarding a  new banking faci l i ty in order to replace the exisIng faci l i ty and discuss ions  are progress ing in
l ine with expectations.
 
The capital  resources  at the Group's  disposal  at 31 December 2024 and 28 February 2025:
 
·    A revolving credit faci l i ty of £120.0m, £65.7m drawn at 31 December 2024 and £65.3m drawn at 28 February 2025

 
The revolving credit faci l i ty requires  the Group to comply with the fol lowing quarterly financial  covenants:
 
·    Clos ing Covenant Net Debt of no more than 3.0 times Covenant EBITDA for the preceding 12-month period

·    Covenant EBITDA of no less  than 4.0 times Covenant Net Finance Expense for the preceding 12 month period

 
The Directors  ran scenario tests  on the severe but plaus ible downside case. The assumpIons in this  scenario were as
fol lows: concentraIon risks  with associated operaIons (25% reducIon in revenue for three months  fol lowed by 50%
reduction for three months  and 20% increase in shipping costs  during the period) and macroeconomic, pol i tical  and
environmental  risks  (18-month recess ion with a  10% reducIon in revenue and gross  profit). These severe but plaus ible
downside scenarios  do not lead to any breach in covenants  nor any breach in faci l i ty. Al l  model l ing has  been conducted
without any mitigation activi ty. There have been no changes  to post balance sheet l iquidity pos itions.
 
The Directors  are confident that the Group and Company wi l l  have sufficient funds  to conInue to meet i ts  l iabi l iIes  as  they
fal l  due for at least 12 months  from the date of approval  of the financial  s tatements  and therefore have prepared the
financial  s tatements  on a going concern bas is .
 
Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance - adjusted measures
 
The financial  s tatements  contain a l l  the informaIon and disclosures  required by the relevant accounIng standards  and
regulatory obl igations  that apply to the Group.
 
The Group's  performance is  assessed us ing a  number of financial  measures  which are not defined under I F RS (the financial
reporIng framework appl ied by the Group). Management uses  the adjusted or a l ternaIve performance measures  (AP Ms) as
a part of their internal  financial  performance monitoring and when assess ing the future impact of operaIng decis ions. The
AP Ms disclose the adjusted performance of the Group excluding specific i tems. The measures  a l low a more effecIve year-
on-year comparison and identi fication of core bus iness  trends  by removing the impact of i tems occurring ei ther outs ide the

https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/r06/___http:/www.lucecoplc.com/___.ZXV3MjpuZXh0MTU6YzpvOmQwNjg5ZDY0MDMxZDE1YTAxNGY1ODU0M2JjZjQ5MmE0Ojc6OTFjNTo2YmExZmQ3MzkzYWIzNjRjNDVlYmI3NDhkNGJiYjU2ODA0YWJhYjk3YzJiNTY1ZmQ2MWExM2Y1MjRkM2Y2M2UwOnA6VDpU
https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/r06/___https:/data.fca.org.uk/___.ZXV3MjpuZXh0MTU6YzpvOmQwNjg5ZDY0MDMxZDE1YTAxNGY1ODU0M2JjZjQ5MmE0Ojc6ZjgxMzphZTQzYjEyNzZjMjA5YWQ4YjAzMWVhYjA5MDQ1ODA4MjhlMGRkM2VmZTdhNDVkMjdmMGU1YjhmMzRmOTMxNGI0OnA6VDpU#/nsm/nationalstoragemechanism


on-year comparison and identi fication of core bus iness  trends  by removing the impact of i tems occurring ei ther outs ide the
normal  course of operaIons or as  a  result of intermiQent acIviIes  such as  a  corporate acquis iIon. The Group separately
reports  acquis iIon costs , other excepIonal  i tems and other specific i tems in the  consol idated income statement which, in
the Directors ' judgement, need to be disclosed separately by vi rtue of their nature, s ize and incidence in order for users  of
the financial  s tatements  to obtain a  balanced view of the financial  informaIon and the underlying performance of the
business .
 
I n fol lowing the guidel ines  on AlternaIve Performance Measures  (AP Ms) issued by the European SecuriIes  and Markets
AuthoriIes, the Group has  included a consol idated income statement and consol idated cash flow statement that have both
Statutory and Adjusted performance measures. The definiIons of the measures  used in these results  are below and the
principles  to identi fy adjusting i tems have been appl ied on a bas is  cons istent with previous  years .
 
Nature of
measure

Related IFRS
measure

Related IFRS source Definition Use/relevance

Adjusted Gross
Profi t Margin

Gross  Profi t Margin Consol idated income
statement

Based on the related
IFRS

measure but excluding
the

adjusting i tems.
A breakdown of the

adjusting i tems from
2024

and 2023, which
reconci les

the adjusted measures
to

statutory figures , can be
found later in this

document

Al lows management to
assess  the performance

of the bus iness  after
removing large/unusual

i tems or transactions  that
are not reflective of the

underlying bus iness
operations

Adjusted
Operating Costs

Operating Gross
profi t less

Operating profi t

Consol idated income
statement

Adjusted
Operating
Profi t

Operating profi t Consol idated income
statement

Adjusted Bas ic
EPS

Bas ic EPS Consol idated income
statement

Constant
Currency

Current period reviewed
trans lated at the

average exchange rate
of the prior period

Al lows management
to identi fy the relative

year-on-year performance
of the bus iness  by

removing
the impact of currency

movements  that are
outs ide

of management's  control
EBITDA Operating profi t Consol idated income

statement
Consol idated earnings

before interest, tax,
depreciation and

amortisation

Provides  management with
an approximation of cash

generation from the
Group's  operational

activi ties
Low Carbon
Sales

Revenue Segmental  operating
revenue

EV charger revenue and
LED revenue less  sales
from l ighting columns

and downl ight
accessories

Provides  management with
a measure of low

carbon sales

Adjusted
EBITDA

Operating profi t Consol idated income
statement

EBITDA excluding the
adjusting i tems

excluded from Adjusted
Operating Profi t except
for any adjusting i tems

that relate to
depreciation and

amortisation

Provides  management with
an approximation of cash

generation from the
Group's  underlying
operating activi ties

Covenant
EBITDA

Operating profi t Consol idated income
statement

As above defini tion of
"Adjusted EBITDA" but

including EBITDA
generated from

acquis i tions  between 1
January and the date of

acquis i tion and
excluding share-based

payment expense

Al igns  with the defini tion
of EBITDA used for bank

covenant testing

Contribution
profi t

Operating profi t
and operating costs

Consol idated income
statement

Contribution profi t i s
after a l location of

directly attributable
adjusted operating

expenses  for each
operating segment

Provides  management with
an assessment of

profi tabi l i ty by operating
segment

Contribution
margin

Operating profi t
and operating costs

Consol idated income
statement

Contribution margin is
contribution profi t, as

above, divided by
revenue for each

operating segment

Provides  management with
an assessment of margin

by operating segment

Adjusted
Operating Cash
Flow

Cash flow from
operations

Consol idated cash flow
statement

Adjusted Operating
Cash Flow is  the cash

from operations  but
excluding the cash

impact of the adjusting
items excluded from
Adjusted Operating

Profi t

Provides  management with
an indication of the

amount of cash avai lable
for discretionary

investment

Adjusted Free
Cash Flow

Net
increase/(decrease)

in cash and cash
equivalents

Consol idated cash flow
statement

Adjusted Free Cash Flow
is  calculated as

Adjusted Operating
Cash Flow less  cash

flows in respect of
investing activi ties
(except for those in

respect of acquis i tions
or disposals ), interest

Provides  management with
an indication of the free

cash generated by the
business  for return to

shareholders  or
reinvestment in M&A

activi ty



or disposals ), interest
and taxes  paid

Adjusted Net
Cash Flow

Net
increase/(decrease)

in cash and cash
equivalents

Consol idated cash flow
statement

Adjusted Free Cash Flow
less  cash flows relating

to dividend payments
and the purchase of

own shares

Provides  management with
an indication of the net

cash flows generated by
the bus iness  after

dividends and share
purchases

Adjusted
Operating Cash
Convers ion

None Consol idated cash flow
statement and

consol idated income
statement

Operating Cash
Convers ion is  defined

as  Adjusted Operating
Cash Flow divided by

Adjusted Operating
Profi t

Al lows management to
monitor the convers ion of
operating profi t into cash

Return on
Capital
Invested
("ROCI")

None Operating profi t and Net
assets

Adjusted Operating
Profi t divided into the
sum of net assets  and

net debt (average for the
last two years)
expressed as  a

percentage

To provide an assessment
of how profi tabi l i ty capital

is  being deployed in the
business

Nature of
measure

Related IFRS
measure

Related IFRS source Definition Use/relevance

 
 
The fol lowing table reconci les  a l l  adjustments  from the reported to the adjusted figures  in the income statement:
 
 

2024
£m

Amortisation of
acquired

intangibles  and
related acquis i tion

costs1

£m

Re-measurement
to fa ir value of

hedging portfol io2

£m

2024
Adjustments

£m

Adjusted
2024

£m
Revenue 242.5 - - - 242.5
Cost of sales (145.0) - (0.3) (0.3) (145.3)
Gross profit 97.5 - (0.3) (0.3) 97.2
Distribution expenses (11.3) - - - (11.3)
Administrative expenses (63.0) 6.1 - 6.1 (56.9)
Operating profit 23.2 6.1 (0.3) 5.8 29.0
Net finance expense (4.3) - 0.2 0.2 (4.1)
Profit before tax 18.9 6.1 (0.1) 6.0 24.9
Taxation (4.3) (1.4) - (1.4) (5.7)
Profit for the period 14.6 4.7 (0.1) 4.6 19.2

1.   Relating to Kingfisher Lighting, DW Windsor, Sync EV, D-Line and CMD

2.   Relating to currency hedges/interest swaps
 

2023
£m

Amortisation
of acquired
intangibles
and related
acquis i tion

costs1

£m

Re-
measurement

to fa ir value of
hedging

portfol io2

£m

2023
Adjustments

£m

Adjusted
2023

£m
Revenue 209.0 - - - 209.0
Cost of sales (126.2) - (0.5) (0.5) (126.7)
Gross profit 82.8 - (0.5) (0.5) 82.3
Distribution expenses (8.6) - - - (8.6)
Administrative expenses (52.0) 2.3 - 2.3 (49.7)
Operating profit 22.2 2.3 (0.5) 1.8 24.0
Net finance expense (3.3) - 0.5 0.5 (2.8)
Profit before tax 18.9 2.3 - 2.3 21.2
Taxation (2.2) (1.7) - (1.7) (3.9)
Profit for the period 16.7 0.6 - 0.6 17.3

1.   Relating to Kingfisher Lighting, DW Windsor and Sync EV

2.   Relating to currency hedges/interest swaps
 
The fol lowing tables  indicate how alternative performance measures  are calculated:
 

2024 2023
Adjusted 12 months rolling EBITDA £m £m
Adjusted Operating Profi t 29.0 24.0
Adjusted Depreciation and Amortisation 7.9 7.4
Adjusted 12 months rolling EBITDA 36.9 31.4
 

2024 2023
Covenant EBITDA £m £m
Adjusted 12 months  rol l ing EBITDA 36.9 31.4
EBITDA from acquis i tions  from 1 January to the date of acquis i tion and share based
payment expense

4.8 0.8

Covenant EBITDA 41.7 32.2
 

2024 2023
Adjusted Operating Cash Conversion £m £m
Cash from operations  (from consol idated cash flow statement) 21.0 32.6
Adjustments  to operating cash flow (from consol idated cash flow statement) 0.7 -
Adjusted Operating Cash Flow 21.7 32.6
Adjusted Operating Profi t 29.0 24.0
Adjusted Operating Cash Conversion 74.8% 135.8%



Adjusted Operating Cash Conversion 74.8% 135.8%
 
 

2024 2023
Adjusted Net Cash Flow as % of revenue £m £m
Adjusted Free Cash Flow (see below) 3.5 18.0
Purchase of own shares (4.7) (1.6)
Dividends (7.5) (7.2)
Adjusted Net Cash Flow (8.7) 9.2
Revenue 242.5 209.0
Adjusted Net Cash Flow as % of revenue (3.6%) 4.4%
 
 
Adjusted Free Cash Flow as % of revenue

2024
£m

2023
£m

Adjusted Operating Cash Flow (see table above) 21.7 32.6
Net Cash used in investing activi ties  excluding acquis i tions  (from consol idated cash
flow statement)

(7.8) (8.2)

Interest paid (from consol idated cash flow statement) (4.1) (2.8)
Tax paid (from consol idated cash flow statement) (6.3) (3.6)
Adjusted Free Cash Flow 3.5 18.0
Revenue 242.5 209.0
Adjusted Free Cash Flow as % of revenue 1.4% 8.6%
 

2024 2023
Return on Capital Investment £m £m
Net assets 95.8 93.8
Net debt 75.1 22.8
Capital invested 170.9 116.6
Average capital  invested (from last two years) 143.8 116.4
Adjusted Operating Profi t (from above) 29.0 24.0
Return on Capital Invested (Adjusted Operating Profit/average capital invested) 20.2% 20.6%
 
Standards and interpretations issued
 
The fol lowing UK-adopted I F RS have been issued and have been appl ied in these financial  s tatements . Their adopIon did
not have a materia l  effect on the financial  s tatements , unless  otherwise indicated, from 1 January 2024:
 
• Non-current Liabi l i ties  with Covenants  - Amendments  to IAS 1
• Class i fication of Liabi l i ties  as  Current or Non-current - Amendments  to IAS 1
• Lease Liabi l i ty in a  Sale and Leaseback - Amendments  to IFRS 16
• Suppl ier Finance Arrangements  - Amendments  to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
 
The fol lowing UK  adopted I F RS have been issued but have not been appl ied and adopIon is  not expected to have a materia l
effect on the financial  s tatements , unless  otherwise indicated, from 1 January 2025:
 
• Lack of Exchangeabi l i ty - Amendments  to IAS 21 (1 January 2026)
• Class ificaIon and Measurement of F inancial  I nstruments  - Amendments  to I F RS 9 and I F RS 7 Annual

Improvements  to IFRS Accounting Standards  - Volume 11 (1 January 2026)
• I F RS 18 P resentaIon and Disclosure in F inancial  Statements  I F RS 19 Subs idiaries  without P ubl ic

Accountabi l i ty: Disclosures  (1 January 2027)
 
 
2. Operating segments
 
The Group's  principal  acIviIes  are in the manufacturing and supply of W iring Accessories , LED LighIng and Portable
Power equipment. For the purposes  of management reporIng to the Chief O peraIng Decis ion-Maker (the Board), the Group
consists  of three operaIng segments  which are the product categories  that the Group distributes . The Board does  not
review the Group's  assets  and l iabi l iIes  on a segmental  bas is  and, therefore, no segmental  disclosure is  included. I nter-
segment sales  are not materia l . Revenue and operating profi t are reported under IFRS 8 Operating Segments.
 
 

   
Adjusted

2024
 

Adjustments
Reported

2024
Adjusted

2023
 

Adjustments
Reported

2023
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue    
Wiring Accessories 108.9 - 108.9 82.6 - 82.6
LED Lighting 78.4 - 78.4 79.0 - 79.0
Portable Power 55.2 - 55.2 47.4 - 47.4

242.5 - 242.5 209.0 - 209.0
Operating profit    
Wiring Accessories 19.1 (4.2) 14.9 15.0 0.3 15.3
LED Lighting 4.1 (1.4) 2.7 4.7 (1.5) 3.2
Portable Power 5.8 (0.2) 5.6 4.3 (0.6) 3.7
Operating profit 29.0 (5.8) 23.2 24.0 (1.8) 22.2

 

Revenue by location of customer  
2024 2023

£m £m
UK 184.2 173.6
Americas 22.5 8.6
Europe 21.5 12.9
Middle East and Africa 10.3 8.3
Asia  Paci fic 4.0 5.6
Total revenue 242.5 209.0

 

Non-current assets by location  



Non-current assets by location  
2024 2023

£m £m
UK 86.4 57.3
China 14.4 15.3
Other 0.5 0.3
Non-current assets 101.3 72.9
 
 
3. Expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement
Included in the consol idated income statement are the fol lowing:

 2024 2023
£m £m

Research and development costs  expensed as  incurred 3.2 2.3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 6.5 5.9
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.7 3.4
 
 
4. Income tax expense
 

2024 2023
£m £m

Current tax expense  
Current year - UK 4.8 2.9
Current year - overseas 0.2 -
Adjustment in respect of prior years 0.1 (0.5)
Current tax expense 5.1 2.4
Deferred tax expense/(credit)  
Origination and reversal  of temporary di fferences (1.1) 0.9
Foreign taxation 0.3 -
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (1.3)
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance - 0.2
Deferred tax (credit) (0.8) (0.2)
Total tax expense 4.3 2.2
 
 2024 2023
Reconciliation of effective tax rate £m £m
Profi t for the year 14.6 16.7
Total  tax expense 4.3 2.2
Profit before taxation 18.9 18.9
Tax us ing the UK corporation tax rate of 25.0% (effective from 1 Apri l  2023) 4.7 4.4
R&D tax credits (0.5) (0.4)
Non-deductible expenses 0.5 0.1
Adjustment in respect of previous  periods 0.1 (1.8)
Effect of rate change in calculation of deferred tax - 0.3
Foreign tax di fferences  in rates (0.6) (0.5)
Deferred tax on share-based payments (0.1) -
Movement in deferred tax not recognised - 0.1
Acquis i tions  of enti ties 0.2 -
Total tax expense 4.3 2.2
 
 
5. Earnings per share
 
Earnings  per share is  calculated based on the profit for the period aQributable to the owners  of the Group. Adjusted
earnings  per share is  calculated based on the adjusted profit for the period, as  detai led below, aQributable to the owners
of the Group. These measures  are divided by the weighted average number of shares  outstanding during the period.
 

2024 2023
£m £m

Earnings  for calculating bas ic earnings  per share 14.6 16.7
Adjusted for:  
    Restructuring of European operations - -
    Amortisation of acquired intangibles  and related acquis i tion costs 6.1 2.3
    Remeasurement to fa i r value of hedging portfol io (0.3) (0.5)
    Remeasurement to fa i r value of interest swaps 0.2 0.5
    Income tax on above i tems (1.4) (0.5)
    Other tax i tems - (1.2)
Adjusted earnings for calculating adjusted basic earnings per share 19.2 17.3
 

2024 2023
Number Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Million Mil l ion
Bas ic 153.2 155.2
Di lutive effect of share options  on potentia l  ordinary shares 0.9 1.3
Diluted 154.1 156.5
 

2024 2023
Pence Pence

Bas ic earnings  per share 9.5 10.8
Di luted earnings  per share 9.5 10.7
Adjusted basic earnings per share 12.5 11.1
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 12.5 11.1
 
 
6. Dividend
 
Amounts  recognised in the financial  s tatements  as  distributions  to equity shareholders  as  fol lows:
 



 
2024 2023

£m £m
Final  dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of 3.2p (2022: 3.0p) per ordinary
share

4.9 4.7

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 of 1.7p (2023: 1.6p) per ordinary
share

2.6 2.5

Total dividend recognised during the year 7.5 7.2
 
The Board is  proposing a  final  dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 of 3.3p which is  a  £5.1m cash payment
(2023: £4.9m).
 
 
7. Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Group purchased assets  at a  cost of £5.0m (2023: £6.4m); including land and bui ldings  £1.8m, plant

and equipment £1.5m, tool ing £1.3m, and fixtures  and fiVngs and motor vehicles  £0.4m. Assets  with a  net book value of

£0.3m were disposed (2023 £0.2m). Total  depreciation for the period was £3.8m (2023: £3.9m).

During the year there were lease addiIons total l ing £1.9m and a depreciaIon charge of £2.7m. The net book value of right-

of-use assets  at 31 December 2024 was £9.7m (2024: £7.6m).

The Group has  not included any borrowing costs  within addiIons in 2024 (2023: £ni l ). There were no funds  specifical ly

borrowed for the assets  and the amount el igible as  part of the general  debt instruments  pool  (aMer applying the

appropriate capital isation rate) i s  not cons idered materia l .

 
8. Intangible assets and goodwill
 
Development expenditure is  capital ised and included in intangible assets  when i t meets  the cri teria  la id out in I AS 38,
"I ntangible Assets". During the year, the Group incurred internal ly generated development costs  of £1.9m (2023: £1.8m).
The Group has  not included any borrowing costs  within capital ised development costs . There were no funds  specifical ly
borrowed for this  asset and the amount el igible as  part of the general  debt instruments  pool  (aMer applying the
appropriate capital isation rate) i s  not cons idered materia l . Amortisation for the year was  £3.7m (2023: £3.4m).
 
I n the consol idated income statement these amounts  have been included within "adjustments" in calculaIng the Adjusted
Operating Profi t/loss  (refer to note 1 in the Notes  to the consol idated financial  s tatements).
 
There have been no triggers  to necess i tate an impairment of goodwi l l  s ince the review undertaken as  part of the year ended
31 December 2024. Goodwi l l  has  been al located to cash-generaIng units  and can be referred to in the Group's  2024
Annual  Report and Financial  Statements .
 
 
9. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
 
This  note provides  informaIon about the contractual  terms of the Group's  interest-bearing loans  and borrowings, which
are measured at amorIsed cost. For more informaIon about the Group's  exposure to interest rate and foreign currency
risk, please refer to note 20 in the 2024 Annual  Report and Financial  Statements .
 
 

2024 2023
£m £m

Non-current liabilities  
Revolving credit faci l i ty 70.5 22.3
Overdrafts 1.5 -

72.0 22.3
 
Bank loans  are secured by a  fixed and floating charge over the assets  of the Group.
 
 
10. Acquisitions
 
D-line
The Group acquired the entire issued share capital  of D-Line (Europe) Limited ("D-Line") on 29 February 2024 for £8.6m
initia l  cash cons ideration and up to £3.8m of contingent cons ideration which is  estimated to be £0.8m. D-Line is  a  suppl ier
of cable management solutions  offering an additional  product opportunity for the Group, cons isting of decorative cable
trunking and accessories , fi re-rated cable supports , floor cable protector and cable organisers , with headquarters  in Tyne
and Wear in the UK. The bus iness  suppl ies  retai l , wholesale and eCommerce customers  mainly in the UK, Europe and North
America. The bus iness  supports  i ts  customers  in North America from a sales  and distribution faci l i ty in Kentucky, USA. The
fair value, which is  currently provis ional  (as  the Group wi l l  continue to review these during the measurement period), of
the cons ideration paid and the consol idated net assets  acquired, together with the goodwi l l  aris ing in respect of this
acquis i tion, was  as  fol lows: acquired On 29 February 2024, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital  of D-Line,
the suppl ier of cable management solutions  for ini tia l  cons ideration of £8.6m. The fa ir value (which is  currently being
assessed in conjunction with our independent valuation experts  who have not issued their final  report) of the
consideration paid and the consol idated net assets  acquired, together with the goodwi l l  aris ing in respect of this
acquis i tion, was  as  fol lows:
 

Provis ional
fa ir value

estimate on
acquis i tion

£m
Intangible assets  (contract related and other intangibles  aris ing on acquis i tion) 2.8
Property, plant and equipment 2.8
Inventories 5.6



Inventories 5.6
Trade and other receivables 2.0
Cash 0.8
Finance lease (1.7)
Corporation tax (l iabi l i ty) (0.1)
Deferred tax (l iabi l i ty) (1.1)
Provis ions (0.9)
Trade and other payables (2.2)
Total 8.0
Consideration - cash 8.6
Contingent cons ideration 0.8
Goodwi l l  aris ing 1.4
 
Goodwi l l  of £1.4m has  been provis ional ly a l located with £0.7m to the W iring Accessories  CGU and £0.7m to D-Line CGU
reflecIng the synergised bus iness  case opportuniIes. S ince acquis iIon revenue from D-Line has  been £18.9m with
operating profi t of £1.7m.
 
CMD
The Group acquired the entire share capital  of CMD ("CMD") on 27 September 2024 for £29.8m initia l  cash cons ideration
on a debt-free bas is . The cons ideration paid was  £14.0m plus  the pay down of £15.8m of debt. CMD (www.cmd-ltd.com),
founded in 1984, des igns  and manufactures  a  comprehensive range of wiring accessories  for commercial  premises  and
therefore is  a  strong strategic fi t for the Group, where i t holds  a  leading pos ition in the UK. Products  include under-floor
and under-desk power distribution solutions, on-desk and in-desk sockets , and a range of ergonomic products  including
the award-winning Miro monitor support arm. CMD has  an experienced senior management team which wi l l  remain with
the bus iness , continuing to operate from i ts  headquarters  in Rotherham. The fa ir value, which is  currently provis ional  (as
the Group wi l l  continue to review these during the measurement period), of the cons ideration paid and the consol idated net
assets  acquired, together with the goodwi l l  aris ing in respect of this  acquis i tion, was  as  fol lows:
 

Provis ional
fa ir value

estimate on
acquis i tion

£m
Intangible assets  (contract related and other intangibles  aris ing on acquis i tion) 8.9
Property, plant and equipment 4.6
Inventories 5.3
Trade and other receivables 4.4
Cash 0.1
Finance lease (1.2)
Corporate tax asset 0.2
Deferred tax (l iabi l i ty) (2.6)
Provis ions -
Trade and other payables (2.5)
Total 17.2
Consideration - cash 29.8
Goodwi l l  aris ing 12.6
 
Goodwi l l  of £12.6m has  been provis ional ly a l located with £6.4m to the C M D CGU, £3.9m to the W iring Accessories  CGU
and £2.3m to the LED CGU reflecIng the synergised bus iness  case opportuniIes  idenIfied. S ince acquis iIon revenue from
CMD has  been £4.8m with operating profi t of £0.1m.
 
 
11. Exchange rates
 
The fol lowing s igni ficant Sterl ing exchange rates  were appl ied during the year:
 

Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2024 2023 2024 2023

USD 1.28 1.24 1.25 1.27
EUR 1.18 1.15 1.21 1.15
RMB 9.20 8.81 9.15 9.00
 
 
12. Related party transactions
 
Transactions  with key personnel
 
Key personnel  include execuIve and non-execuIve Board members  and the senior management team.  The compensaIon of
key management personnel , including executive directors  i s  as  fol lows:
 

2024 2023
£m £m

Remuneration (including benefi ts  in kind) 4.7 5.1
Element of share-based payments  expense 1.4 0.9

6.1 6.0
 
 
13. Post balance sheet events
 
There are no post balance sheet events .
 
 
14. Annual General Meeting (AGM)
 
The 2025 AGM wi l l  take place on 20 May 2025 at Peel  Hunt LLP, 100 Liverpool  Street, London, EC2M 2AT.  The noIce of AGM
and any related documents  wi l l  be sent to shareholders  within the prescribed Imescales . Shareholders  wi l l  be encouraged
to submit their proxy votes  onl ine.



 
 
15. Date of approval of financial information
 
The financial  information covers  the year 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 and was approved by the Board on 25
March 2025. A copy of the 2024 Annual  Report and Financial  Statements  wi l l  be publ ished on the Luceco PLC investor
relations  website, www.lucecoplc.com as  soon as  practicable.
 
 
Additional information
 
Financial calendar
 
Item Date
Ex-dividend date 10 Apri l  2025
Dividend record date 11 Apri l  2025
Dividend reinvestment plan final  date for election 30 Apri l  2025
Annual  General  Meeting 20 May 2025
Dividend paid 22 May 2025
2025 Half year end 30 June 2025
2025 Half year trading update 22 July 2025
2025 Half year results 09 September 2025
2025 Q3 Trading update 22 October 2025
2025 Year end 31 December 2025
2025 Year end prel iminary statement March 2026
 
 
Contacts
 
Type Name Address Website/Email/Phone
Company's registered office Luceco plc Bui lding E Stafford Park

1
Stafford Park
Tel ford
TF3 3BD

www.lucecoplc.com
ir@luceco.com
 

Independent auditor KPMG LLP Chartered Accountants
One Snowhi l l
Snow Hi l l  Queensway
Birmingham
B4 6GH

www.kpmg.co.uk
 

Financial advisors and brokers Deutsche Numis 45 Gresham Street
London
EC2V 7BF

www.numis .com
 

 Peel  Hunt Moor House
100 Liverpool  Street
London
EC2M 2AT

www.peelhunt.com
 

Company registrar MUFG Central  Square
29 Wel l ington Street
Leeds
LS1 4DL

shareholderenquiries@cm.mpms.mufg.com
Tel : +44 (0)371 664 0300
 

Company Secretary MUFG 19th Floor
51 Lime Street
London
EC3M 7DQ

luceco@cm.mpms.mufg.com
Tel : +44 (0)333 300 1932

Financial PR MHP
Communications

60 Great Portland Street
London
W1W 7RT

luceco@mhpgroup.com
Tel : +44 (0)20 3128 8100

 

This information is provided by RNS, the news service of the London Stock Exchange. RNS is approved by the Financial Conduct Authority to act as a
Primary Information Provider in the United Kingdom. Terms and conditions relating to the use and distribution of this information may apply. For further
information, please contact rns@lseg.com or visit www.rns.com.

RNS may use your IP address to confirm compliance with the terms and conditions, to analyse how you engage with the information contained in this
communication, and to share such analysis on an anonymised basis with others as part of our commercial services. For further information about how
RNS and the London Stock Exchange use the personal data you provide us, please see our Privacy Policy.
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